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AGENDA

1. COFNODION

Awdurdodi’r Cadeirydd i lofnodi cofnodion y cyfarfod(ydd) blaenorol y Pwyligor a
gynhaliwyd ar y dyddiad(au) canlynol fel cofnod cywir:

e 16 Awst 2016

e 2 Tachwedd 2016

(Tudalennau 1 - 4)

2. YMDDIHEURIADAU

Derbyn ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb.

3. DATGANIADAU O DDIDDORDEB

Derbyn unrhyw ddatganiadau o ddiddordeb gan Aelodau yn ymwneud ag eitemau
i'w hystyried ar yr agenda.

4, DEDDF LLYWODAETH LEOL 2000 - APEL YN ERBYN PENDERFYNIAD Y
PWYLLGOR SAFONAU




Derbyn adroddiad y Dirprwy Swyddog Monitro mewn perthynas a'r Cynghorydd Sir
Gary Price.

(Tudalennau 5 - 28)
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Standards Committee
16t August 2016

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE STANDARDS COMMITTEE HELD AT

COMMITTEE ROOM A - COUNTY HALL, LLANDRINDOD WELLS, POWYS ON
TUESDAY, 16 AUGUST 2016

PRESENT

Independent Members: Mrs C Jackson, Mrs J Evans, Mr S Hays, Mrs S Jarman

County Councillors P J Medlicott and K S Silk

| 1. | APOLOGIES | $25-2016
No apologies for absence were received.
| 2. | DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST | $26-2016
No declarations of interest were received.
| 3. | CONFIDENTIAL MATTERS | $27-2016
RESOLVED to exclude the public for the following item of
business on the grounds that there would be disclosure to them of
exempt information under category 8 of The Council’s Access to
Information Rules.
| 4. | REPORT OF THE DEPUTY MONITORING OFFICER | S28-2016

The Deputy Monitoring Officer presented a report on the Public Services
Ombudsman for Wales’ investigation into allegation of a breach of the Members’

Code of Conduct.

RESOLVED

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION

1) that the Committee adopts the
procedures set out in Appendix 1 to
the report for the determination of
the matter

To comply with its obligations under
the Local Government Investigations
(Functions of Monitoring Officers
and Standards Committees) (Wales)
Regulations 2001.

li) that the person subject to the
report from the Ombudsman be
given the opportunity to make
representations in respect of the
findings of the investigation and
any allegation that they may have
failed to comply with the Members’
Code of Conduct

To comply with its obligations under
the Local Government Investigations
(Functions of Monitoring Officers
and Standards Committees) (Wales)
Regulations 2001.
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Public Document Pack

Standards Committee
2nd November 2016

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE STANDARDS COMMITTEE HELD AT
COMMITTEE ROOM A - COUNTY HALL, LLANDRINDOD WELLS, POWYS ON
WEDNESDAY, 2 NOVEMBER 2016

PRESENT:
Independent Members Mrs C Jackson, Mrs J Evans, Mr S Hays, Mrs S Jarman,
County Councillors: P J Medlicott and K S Silk

Also present:

Mr E Pritchard (Investigating Officer on behalf of the Public Services Ombudsman for
Wales)

Mr S Brisley (Public Services Ombudsman for Wales representative)

Ms A Ginwalla (Public Services Ombudsman for Wales representative)

Mrs D Jones (Deputy Monitoring Officer and Standards Office), Mrs L Patterson
(Scrutiny Officer)

| 1. | APOLOGIES | $33-2016

No apologies of absence were received.

| 2. | DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST | $34-2016

No declarations of interest were received.

| 3. | EXEMPT ITEMS | $35-2016

RESOLVED that the press and public be excluded from the meeting under:

e Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) for the
next item of business on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of
exempt information as defined in paragraph 13 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A of
the Act, and

e Section 100 (A) 4 of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) on the
grounds that it involves information which is subject to any obligations of
confidentiality and that it applies to the deliberations of s Standards
Committee established under the provisions of Part 3 of the Local
Government 2000 in reaching any finding on a matter referred to it as defined
in paragraphs 18 (a) and 18 (c).

4, CONSIDERATION OF REPRESENTATIONS AND | S36-2016
FINAL DETERMINATION OF A REPORT PREPARED
BY THE PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR
WALES UNDER SECTION 71 (2) OF THE LOCAL
GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 (REF 201501199)

The Committee considered a report of the Public Services Ombudsman for
Wales (the Ombudsman) regarding alleged breaches of the Code of Conduct for
Members of Powys County Council by Councillor Gary Price, which had been
referred to the Standards Committee by the Ombudsman under Section 71 (2) of
the Local Government Act 2000 for determination.
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Standards Committee
2nd November 2016

County Councillor Price did not attend the Hearing and was not represented.
The Standards Committee decided under regulation 8 (4) a of the Local
Government Investigations (Functions of Monitoring Officers and Standards
Committee) (Wales) Regulations 2001 to proceed in the absence of Councillor
Price.

The Investigating Officer from the Ombudsman’s Office presented the report and
was invited to make representations regarding the matter.

The Committee determined that Councillor Gary Price had been found in
breach of parts 4 (b) and 6 (1) (a) of the Members Code of Conduct and
should be suspended for a period of five months from being a Member of
Powys County Council. The period of suspension would commence on the
day after the expiry of the time allowed to lodge a request for permission to
appeal.
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29-2017

POWYS COUNTY COUNCIL
STANDARDS COMMITTEE
26 MAY 2017

TO CONSIDER THE REPORT OF THE ADJUUDICATION PANEL FOR WALES,
DATED 17™ MARCH 2017, IN RELATION TO COUNTY COUNCILLOR GARY
PRICE — NOTICE OF DECISION.

REPORT OF THE DEPUTY MONITORING OFFICER

Reason for this Report

1. To inform Members of the Committee of the recent decision of the Adjudication
Panel for Wales (APW) in relation to a complaint against Councillor Price and to
consider the recommendation made by the APW, which has to be referred back to
the Standards Committee for further consideration. Thereafter for the Committee to
determine the duration of suspension.

Background

2. This matter relates to a complaint made to the Public Services Ombudsman for
Wales (PSOW) alleging that Councillor Price, a member of the County Council had
failed to comply with the Council’s Code of Conduct, in relation to correspondence
he had sent which incorrectly and unfairly portrayed the content of a Grievance
Appeal Hearing, of which he was a member of the Panel.

3. The Ombudsman investigated the complaint and issued a report of his findings
under Section 69 of the Local Government Act 2000. The Ombudsman’s finding was
that the Member had breached paragraph 6 (1) (a) of the Code of Conduct and
concluded that there was insufficient evidence that the Member had breached
paragraph 4 (b) of the Code of Conduct. Therefore and under Section 69 (4) (c) of
the Act, the matter was referred to the Council’s Monitoring Officer for consideration
by its Standards Committee.

4. On the 2" of November 2016, the Standards Committee considered the report
and found that Councillor Price had breached the code of conduct, both in relation to
paragraph 4 (b) and 6 (1) (a). The PSOW report to the Standards Committee is
attached as Appendix A. The PSOW has authorised disclosure of this report, as
redacted.

5. At the meeting on the 2" of November 2016, the Committee sanctioned him to a 5
month suspension. The minutes of the meeting on the 2" of November 2017 are
attached as Appendix B.

6. The decision to suspend was not implemented as Councillor Price appealed to the
Adjudication Panel for Wales (APW) in a letter dated the 23rd of November 2016.
Within his appeal, Councillor Price indicated his reasons for disputing information
contained within the Ombudsman’s report and raised several grounds of appeal.
Councillor Price also claimed that no consideration had been given to Article 10 of
the European Convention of Human Rights (‘ECHR?”).
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7. The President of the Adjudication Panel for Wales issued a Decision Notice on the
oth of December 2016 which specified the appeal grounds for which the President
could not say in all the circumstances that there was no reasonable prospect of
success and that the President therefore required an Appeal Tribunal to be
convened to hear the appeal.

8. The APW heard the appeal on the 7t and 8t of March 2017 in Llandrindod Wells.
The Notice of Decision and Decision Report of the APW is attached at Appendix C
and D. The Findings of Fact are set out in Section 4 of the Appendix D report.

9. The APW conducted the appeal by way of a full rehearing of the allegations that
Councillor Price had breached the Code of Conduct in writing the letter of the 20t
March 2015 to Ms X in the terms he did and thereby undermined the whole
grievance appeal process and failed to show respect and consideration for others,
under paragraph 4 (b) and subject to paragraph 6 (1) (a) brought his office or
authority into disrepute.

DECISION OF THE APPEAL TRIBUNAL OF THE APW

10. The Appeal Tribunal found by unanimous decision, that there had been a failure
to comply with the Code of Conduct and endorsed the earlier determination of Powys
County Council’s Standards Committee. The Tribunal found that Councillor Price
breached paragraph 4 (b) of the Code. The Appeal Tribunal found that
notwithstanding the Ombudsman’s original report, in view of the finding that
Councillor Price was acting in the role of elected member, Councillor Price failed to
show respect and consideration for his Panel colleagues and this undermined the
whole Grievance Panel process.

11. The Appeal Tribunal found that Councillor Price had breached Paragraph 6(1)(a)
as the action of sending the letter (dated the 20t March 2015) to Ms X in the terms in
which he did, could reasonably be regarded as bringing the office of Councillor and
the authority into disrepute.

12. Having made those findings, pursuant to the Tribunal Procedure Rules, the
Tribunal had two options, namely:-

(a) endorse the penalty imposed by the Standards Committee, or

(b) refer the matter back to the Standards Committee with a recommendation that a
different penalty by imposed. The recommendation is not binding on the Committee.

13. The Tribunal decided by unanimous decision to refer the matter back to the
Standards Committee with a recommendation that Councillor Price should be
suspended for a period of 3 months.
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THE OPTIONS NOW AVAILABLE TO THE STANDARDS COMMITTEE

14. The Standards Committee has limited options available and has no power to
change the findings of fact of the Tribunal. The Standards Committee must only
consider the issue of sanction.

15. Regulation 9(2) of the Local Government Investigations (Functions of Monitoring
Officers and Standards Committees) Wales Regulations 2001 provides that where a
Tribunal refers a matter back to a Standards Committee, with a recommendation that
a different penalty be imposed, the Standards Committee may impose the new
penalty but must also decide whether or not it should instead, uphold its original
decision on sanction (extract from Regulations attached as Appendix E).

16. The Code of Conduct is contained within the authority’s Constitution, and deals
specifically with this situation and outlines the procedure to be followed, it can be
found at 18.4.14.1 to 18.4.14.3, attached as Appendix F.

16. This is the final part of the process and deals specifically and exclusively with the
level of sanction which should be imposed, taking into consideration the findings
reached by the APW. The decision for the Standards Committee is therefore
whether to suspend Councillor Price for a period of 5 months, or to follow the
recommendation of the APW and suspend Councillor Price for a period of 3 months.

17. Whichever period of suspension the Standards Committee decides, it will take
effect on the day after the Standards Committee has reached its decision.

18. There is no further right of appeal except by way of judicial review to the High
Court. An application for permission to bring judicial review will not terminate the
implementation of the suspension in that way that the Notice of Appeal to the APW
did.

19. After making its determination, and communicating the decision in public at the
end of the hearing, the Standards Committee will instruct the Standards Officer to
confirm the decision and the reasons for the decision in writing to the Member, the
Complainant, PSOW and the APW as soon as reasonably practicable.

DECISION REQUIRED

20. To determine the level of suspension to be imposed on Councillor Price as a

result of the breaches of the Council’s Code of Conduct, being either a period of
suspension of three months, or a period of suspension of five months.

DEBBY JONES

DEPUTY MONITORING OFFICER

19TH MAY 2017

Appendix A — PSOW Report dated 17t June 2016

Appendix B — Minutes of the Standards Committee, dated the 2"d of November 2016.
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Appendix C — Adjudication Panel for Wales, Notice of Decision, Tribunal Case
Reference APW/003/2016-017/AT, dated 8" March 2017

Appendix D - Adjudication Panel for Wales, Decision Report, Tribunal Case
Reference APW/003/2016-017/AT, dated 17th March 2017

Appendix E — Extract from Regulation 9 of the Local Government Investigations
(Functions of Monitoring Officers and Standards Committees) Wales Regulations
2001.

Appendix F - Section 18 Code of Conduct for Members — Extract from Powys County
Council Constitution.
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Public Document Pack

Standards Committee
2nd November 2016

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE STANDARDS COMMITTEE HELD AT
COMMITTEE ROOM A - COUNTY HALL, LLANDRINDOD WELLS, POWYS ON
WEDNESDAY, 2 NOVEMBER 2016

PRESENT:
Independent Members Mrs C Jackson, Mrs J Evans, Mr S Hays, Mrs S Jarman,
County Councillors: P J Medlicott and K S Silk

Also present:

Mr E Pritchard (Investigating Officer on behalf of the Public Services Ombudsman for
Wales)

Mr S Brisley (Public Services Ombudsman for Wales representative)

Ms A Ginwalla (Public Services Ombudsman for Wales representative)

Mrs D Jones (Deputy Monitoring Officer and Standards Office), Mrs L Patterson
(Scrutiny Officer)

| 1. | APOLOGIES | $33-2016

No apologies of absence were received.

| 2. | DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST | $34-2016

No declarations of interest were received.

| 3. | EXEMPT ITEMS | $35-2016

RESOLVED that the press and public be excluded from the meeting under:

e Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) for the
next item of business on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of
exempt information as defined in paragraph 13 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A of
the Act, and

e Section 100 (A) 4 of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) on the
grounds that it involves information which is subject to any obligations of
confidentiality and that it applies to the deliberations of s Standards
Committee established under the provisions of Part 3 of the Local
Government 2000 in reaching any finding on a matter referred to it as defined
in paragraphs 18 (a) and 18 (c).

4, CONSIDERATION OF REPRESENTATIONS AND | S36-2016
FINAL DETERMINATION OF A REPORT PREPARED
BY THE PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR
WALES UNDER SECTION 71 (2) OF THE LOCAL
GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 (REF 201501199)

The Committee considered a report of the Public Services Ombudsman for
Wales (the Ombudsman) regarding alleged breaches of the Code of Conduct for
Members of Powys County Council by Councillor Gary Price, which had been
referred to the Standards Committee by the Ombudsman under Section 71 (2) of
the Local Government Act 2000 for determination.
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Standards Committee
2nd November 2016

County Councillor Price did not attend the Hearing and was not represented.
The Standards Committee decided under regulation 8 (4) a of the Local
Government Investigations (Functions of Monitoring Officers and Standards
Committee) (Wales) Regulations 2001 to proceed in the absence of Councillor
Price.

The Investigating Officer from the Ombudsman’s Office presented the report and
was invited to make representations regarding the matter.

The Committee determined that Councillor Gary Price had been found in
breach of parts 4 (b) and 6 (1) (a) of the Members Code of Conduct and
should be suspended for a period of five months from being a Member of
Powys County Council. The period of suspension would commence on the
day after the expiry of the time allowed to lodge a request for permission to
appeal.
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PANEL DYFARNU CYMRU
ADJUDICATION PANEL FOR WALES

NOTICE OF DECISION

TRIBUNAL REFERENCE NUMBER: APW/003/2016-017/AT
APPELLANT: Councillor Gary Price
RELEVANT AUTHORITY: Powys County Council

1. An Appeal Tribunal convened by the President of the Adjudication Panel for
Wales has considered an appeal by Councillor Gary Price against the decision of

Powys County Council Standards Committee that he had breached Powys County
Council's Code of Conduct and should be suspended in full for 5 calendar months.

2. The Standards Committee’s determination followed its consideration of a
report by the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales (“the Ombudsman™) under the
terms of sections 69(4)(c) and 71(2) of the Local Government Act 2000 and the
‘Local Government Investigations (Functions of Monitoring Officers and Standards
Committees) (Wales) Regulations 2001’ (as amended).

3. The allegations were that Councillor Price had breached Powys County
Council’'s Code of Conduct by failing to show respect and consideration for others
and that he brought his office or his authority into disrepute by virtue of the
contents of a letter sent by Councillor Price to Ms X on the 20t March 2015 which
incorrectly and unfairly portrayed the proceedings-of-a Grievance Appeal Hearing
which took place on 20 February 2015.

4.  Ata hearing on the 7" March 2017 at Llandrindod Wells Civil and Family
Justice Centre Hearing Centre, Noyadd Parks, Llandrindod Wells, Powys, LD1 5DF
and on the 8" March 2017 at the APW Tribunal Offices, Government Buildings,
Spa Road East, Llandrindod Wells, Powys, LD1 5HA, the Appeal Tribunal found
the following facts by unanimous decision:-

4.1. That Councillor Price agreed for the Grievance Appeal hearing of 20
February 2015 to proceed in the absence of Ms X.

4.2. That Councillor Price agreed to reject the five points of Ms X's grievance.

4.3. That Councillor Price’s letter dated 20* March 2015 to Ms X incorrectly and
unfairly portrayed the outcome of the Grievance Appeal hearing.

4.4. That Councillor Price was acting in the role of elected Member when writing
to Ms X.
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4.5. That Councillor Price had the “permission” of the Monitoring Officer to write to
Ms X.

4.6. That Councillor Price did not have the permission of the Monitoring Officer to
write to Ms X in the tenms in which he did.

5. The Appeal Tribunal found that Councillor Price had, on the basis of the
facts, breached Paragraphs 4(b} and 6(1)(a) of the Code of Conduct of Powys
County Council.

5.1. Paragraph 4(b) of the Code of Conduct states that a Councillor must show
respect and consideration for others.

5.2. The Appeal Tribunal found that notwithstanding the Ombudsman’s original
report, in view of the finding of fact at point 4.4 of this Decision Notice, Councilior
Price failed to show respect and consideration for his Panel colleagues and this
undermined the whole Grievance Panel process.

5.3  Paragraph 6(1)(a) of the Code of Conduct states that a Councillor must not
conduct himself in a manner which could reasonably be regarded as bringing his
office or authority into disrepute.

5.5  The Appeal Tribunal found that Councillor Price breached this Paragraph as
the action of sending the lefter dated 20 March 2015 to Ms X in the terms in which
he did, could reasonably be regarded as bringing the office of Councillor and the
authority into disrepute.

6. The Appeal Tribunal accordingly decided by unanimous decision to refer the
matter back to the Standards Committee with a recommendation that Councillor
Price should be suspended from being a member or co-opted member of Powys
County Council for a period of 3 months.

7. Powys County Council and its Standards Committee are notified
accordingly.

o
Signed.....................) Date...g ...... Mo (A’\&O’I:'z—

Claire Jones
Chairperson of the Appeal Tribunal

Claire Sharp
Panel Member

Sian Jones
Panel Member

Tudalen 12



(AT04 v02.09.10)

PDC / APW
/
PANEL DYFARNU CYMRU
ADJUDICATION PANEL FOR WALES

DECISION REPORT

TRIBUNAL REFERENCE NUMBER: APW/003/2016-017/AT

APPEAL AGAINST STANDARDS COMMITTEE DETERMINATION IN
RELATION TO AN ALLEGED BREACH OF THE CODE OF CONDUCT

APPELLANT: Councillor Gary Price

RELEVANT AUTHORITY: Powys County Council

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 An Appeal Tribunal convened by the President of the Adjudication Panel for
Wales has considered an appeal by Clir Price against the decision of Powys
County Council’s Standards Committee that he had breached the code of conduct
of Powys County Council and should be suspended for five months.

1.2 Ahearing was held by the Appeal Tribunal at 10.00am on 7 March, 2017 at
the Llandrindod Wells Civil and Family Justice Centre Hearing Centre, Noyadd
Parks, Llandrindod Wells, Powys, LD1 5DF and on the 8 March, 2017 at 10.00am
at the APW Tribunal Offices, Government Buildings, Spa Road East, Llandrindod
Wells, Powys, LD1 5HA. The hearing was open to the public.

1.3 Clir Price attended and represented himself.

2, PRELIMINARY DOCUMENTS AND MATTERS
21 Appeal Against Decision of Standards Committee

2.1.1 The Adjudication Panel for Wales received an appeal dated 23 November,
2016 from Clir Price against the determination of Powys County Council's
Standards Committee held on 2 November 2016 that he had breached the Code of
Conduct of Powys County Council and should be suspended for five months.

2.1.2 The Standards Committee’s determination followed its consideration of a
report by the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales (“the Ombudsman”) under the
terms of sections 69(4)(c) and 71(2) of the Local Government Act 2000 and the
Local Government Investigations (Functions of Monitoring Officers and Standards
Committees) (Wales) Regulations 2001 as amended.
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2.1.3 The allegations were that ClIr Price had breached paragraph 4(b) of the
Members’ Code of Conduct by failing to show respect and consideration for others
and paragraph 6(1)(a) of the code in that he brought his office into disrepute by
virtue of the contents of a letter sent by CliIr Price to Ms X on 20 March, 2015 which
incorrectly and unfairly portrayed the proceedings of a Grievance Appeal hearing
which took place on 20 February, 2015.

2.1.4 In his appeal form sent on the 23 November, 2016, Clir Price indicated his
reasons for disputing information contained in a number of paragraphs of the
Ombudsman’s report and raised several grounds of appeal. He also stated that no
consideration had been given to Article 10 of the European Convention of Human
Rights (“ECHR”").

2.1.5 The President of the Adjudication Panel for Wales issued a Decision Notice
on 9 December, 2016 which specified the appeal grounds for which the President
could not say in all the circumstances that there was no reasonable prospect of
success and that the President therefore required an Appeal Tribunal to be
convened to hear the appeal.

2.1.6 The Ombudsman provided his response to the representations by Clir Price
on 3 January, 2017.

2.2 Preliminary matter

ClIr Price confirmed that he was a Llandrindod Wells Town Councillor as well as a
Powys County Councillor

3. ORAL SUBMISSIONS

The Appeal Tribunal heard oral evidence and submissions as follows:-

3.1. The Ombudsman

3.1.1 Ms Katrin Shaw, on behalf of the Ombudsman, outlined the events which had
led to ClIr Price writing a letter dated 20 March, 2015 to Ms X, which was at the
heart of the matter. The subject-matter of the letter was to do with a Grievance
Appeal Panel hearing dated 20 February, 2015 which had considered Ms X's five
employment-related grievance issues.

3.1.2 Ms Shaw referred to an e-mail forwarded by Clir Price to his fellow panel
members and the Monitoring Officer on 10 March, 2015 where Clir Price expressed

his dissatisfaction with the process and stating that he was inclined to write to Ms X
himself.

3.1.3 Ms Shaw stated that the evidence overwhelmingly supported the conclusion
that ClIr Price had agreed with fellow panel members not to uphold the five
grievance points and that he had agreed for the Grievance Appeal Panel hearing to
go ahead in the absence of Ms X.
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3.2 Clir Katheryn Roberts-Jones

3.2.1 Clir Roberts-Jones who had been a member of the Grievance Appeal Panel
of 20 February, 2015, confirmed her recollection of events. She said that Ms X had
been given ample opportunities to appear before the Panel.

3.2.2 Clir Robert-Jones said that the decision to proceed with the hearing and the
conclusions regarding the five grievance points were agreed upon unanimously
through discussion and that Clir Price contributed fully as did each panel member.
There had been no dissent in relation to the decisions.

3.2.3 Clir Roberts-Jones had been quite surprised to read Clir Price’s e-mail of 10
March, 2015. She felt insulted by the letter dated 20 March, 2015 from Clir Price to
Ms X and the comment that the matter had been pre-judged. This comment by
implication had been directed at Panel members in her view. The Clir said that she
took such matters seriously and would never pre-judge as a person’s livelihood
was at stake.

3.2.4 She said that Clir Price could have had the matter adjourned by leaving the
hearing; however he did not do so. She also confirmed that Clir Price is a Clir who
is willing to challenge issues with which he disagrees.

3.3 Clir John Michael Williams

3.3.1. Clir Williams who had chaired the Grievance Appeal Panel of 20 February,
2015, confirmed his recollection of events. He confirmed that Clir Price had made
the point that he would have preferred it if Ms X had been present however that all
the Panel members had agreed for the matter to go ahead.

3.3.2. He said that the Panel had debated each of the five points, that the decisions
were unanimous and that Clir Price had been as involved as the other Clirs had
been in the Panel deliberations.

3.3.3 Clir Williams had been shocked to read Clir Price’s e-mail dated 10 March,
2015 and said that it bore no relationship to the hearing. Clir Williams said that
fairness was important to him in all things. He could not understand why Clir Price
had made the comments he had in his letter dated 20 March, 2015.

3.4 The Appellant - Clir Gary Price

3.4.1 ClIr Price made it clear that the whole situation was highly regrettable. His
starting point was that Ms X had every right to appeal, that there had been a
number of adjournments for various reasons and that on 20 February, 2015, it had
been Clir Price’s opinion that Ms X had not been able to attend due to medical
reasons which were confirmed by occupational health.

3.4.2 CliIr Price said that he had raised his concerns regarding collusion by

witnesses at various points in the proceedings, only one of which had been
recorded.
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3.4.3 He reluctantly agreed for the meeting of 20 February, 2015 to go ahead. He
was “quite confident” however that he had disagreed with at least two of the five
grievance points. He could not however recall which points.

3.4.4 CliIr Price said that after having received the draft Decision Notice of the
proceedings of 20 February, 2015, he had met the Monitoring Officer, Mr Pinney,
by chance in County Hall, Llandrindod Wells and that Mr Pinney had said that as
long as Clir Price wrote as an individual rather than as a Councillor and did not use
Council facilities to do so, then he would be ‘ok’. He said that he did not ask for, nor
receive, any advice as to the Members’ Code of Conduct.

3.4.5 ClIr Price described the events which led to the letter being shared with the
panel and other Members. Ultimately, Clir Price resigned from the Employment
Appeal Committee as a result of the matter.

3.4.6 He made it clear that, in hindsight, he felt that sending the letter of 20 March,
2015 had not been the right thing to do and that if he had realised it would be
passed on, he would not have written it. He said the letter had been intended as a
private letter although he recognised that he had assumed this naively. He felt he
was not accountable for the subsequent use of the letter however.

3.4.7 CliIr Price said that there had been a considerable personal cost. He said he
was robust in the scrutiny of the Council and if he had been required to attend an
Employment Tribunal regarding the background matter, he would have said the
same thing, namely that he felt that the proceedings of the Grievance Appeal Panel
hearing were shambolic.

3.4.8 In relation to “pre-judging by others”, Clir Price said that he had misused the
word “pre-judge” and that he had meant was that there had been collusion by
officers who were advising the panel. He said he had great respect for Clir Williams
and he had drafted letters of apology to both members. He explained that he had
not sent them yet and was waiting for the conclusion of the current appeal
proceedings.

3.5 Mr Clive Pinney — Monitoring Officer

3.5.1 Mr Pinney referred to the Grievance Appeal Panel hearing of Ms X and said
that the matter had been adjourned on three previous occasions. The hearing took
place on the fourth occasion on the 20 February, 2015. On that date, a phone call
was made to Ms X'’s solicitors to say that the Panel would wait for a further 30
minutes to allow Ms X to attend. The matter went ahead following the unanimous
agreement of the Panel, albeit that ClIr Price had said that he would be happier
had Ms X been there.

3.5.2 The decisions not to uphold the five grievance points were unanimous. Clir
Price seemed content with the discussion. He was not normally reticent and Mr
Pinney applauded that, but in this instance, Clir Price did not indicate any dissent.

3.5.3 Mr Pinney said that in relation to whether questions of concern, for example,

whether questions regarding collusion should be put to the clerk to the Panel or to
the withesses, he said it would depend on the issue. If a Panel member felt that
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collusion had taken place, then the question would have to be put directly to the
witnesses.

3.5.4 He could not recall Clir Price raising the question of his concern regarding
witnesses at any point of the procedure, other than that recorded in the transcript
of proceedings and he could not recall providing any advice to Clir Price at a
chance meeting in County Hall regarding Clir Price’s proposed letter to Ms X and
this had been the first time that this had been suggested to him.

3.5.5 Mr Pinney said that he had shared the letter of 20 March, 2015 which had
been forwarded on to him by Ms X’s solicitor with the other panel members in view
of the accusations of pre-judging. The letter was not marked private and
confidential and was not subject to legal privilege. It also suggested that the author
of the decision letter had been disingenuous by stating that the decision was
unanimous and it was therefore a serious issue.

4. FINDINGS OF FACT

4.1The Appeal Tribunal found the following undisputed material facts:

4.1.1 At the relevant time, Councillor Price was a member of Powys County
Council.

4.1.2 Councillor Price signed an undertaking on 16 May, 2012 that he would
observe the Council’'s Code of Conduct.

4.1.3 Councillor Price received training on the Code of Conduct in 2012.

4.1.4 Councillor Price has been a member of the Council’s Employment
Committee Appeal Panel from time to time since 2004.

4.1.5 Councillor Price was one of three County Council Members of a Grievance
Appeal Panel convened to determine a grievance appeal brought by Ms X.

4.1.6 Following previous adjourned hearings, the matter was determined by the
Appeal Panel on the 20 February, 2015.

4.1.7 Councillor Price has agreed the contents of the transcript of the proceedings
of 20 February, 2015, albeit that the transcript did not record the
deliberations.

4.1.8 Councillor Price wrote to the Monitoring Officer by e-mail on 10 March, 2015
to express his dissatisfaction with the process.

4.1.9 The Monitoring Officer responded by e-mail on the 11 March, 2015 and
noted that Councillor Price may write to Ms X himself and stated that the
draft decision letter would be published if he did not hear from Councillor
Price to the contrary by 4.00pm on 12 March, 2015.
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4.1.10 The Employment Committee Appeal Panel forwarded its determination letter
to Ms X on 12 March, 2015.

4.1.11 Councillor Price wrote to Ms X on 20 March, 2015 in relation to the
proceedings.

4.2 The Appeal Tribunal considered the following disputed material facts:

4.2.1 Whether Councillor Price agreed for the Grievance Appeal hearing of 20
February, 2015 to proceed in the absence of Ms X.

4.2.2 Whether Councillor Price agreed to reject the five points of Ms X’s
grievance.

4.2.3 Whether Councillor Price’s letter dated 20 March, 2015 to Ms X incorrectly
and unfairly portrayed the outcome of the Grievance Appeal hearing.

4.2.4 Whether Councillor Price was acting, claiming to act or giving the

impression that he was acting in the role of elected Member when writing to
Ms X.

4.2.5 Whether Councillor Price had the permission of the Monitoring Officer to
write to Ms X.

4.2.6 Whether Councillor Price had the permission of the Monitoring Officer to
write to Ms X in the terms in which he did.

4.3 The Appeal Tribunal found the following in respect of the disputed facts:

4.3.1 That CllIr Price agreed for the Grievance Appeal panel hearing of 20
February, 2015 to proceed in the absence of Ms X, albeit that he agreed this
reluctantly as stated in his oral evidence.

4.3.2. Clir Price did agree to reject the five points of Ms X’s grievance. There was
clear, consistent and credible evidence that agreement had been unanimous on all
points, whereas CliIr Price could not recall the points with which he claimed to
disagree. The comment in his e-mail dated 10 March, 2015 that in his “heart of
hearts” there had not been a unanimous decision showed that he may have had
internalised doubt which had not been expressed at the pane'! hearing and he was
by March 2015 suffering from “second thoughts”.

4.3.3 In key respects, Clir Price’s letter dated 20 March, 2015 to Ms X incorrectly
and unfairly portrayed the outcome of the Grievance Appeal Panel hearing. In
particular, the recipient of the letter would, incorrectly and unfairly, be led to believe
that ClIr Price’s fellow Panel members had pre-judged the Grievance Appeal and
that the decision not to uphold the grievances had not been unanimous.
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4.3.4 ClIr Price was acting in the role of elected member when writing to Ms X.
ClIr Price had obtained Ms X's address from the Appeal papers and gave his view
of the proceedings by virtue of the fact that he was a Panel member and a
Councillor.

4.3.5 ClIr Price did receive ‘permission’ in the form of advice from the Monitoring
Officer that he could write to Ms X. Clir Price posed the question, “I'm inclined to
write to Ms X myself?” and Mr Pinney responded, “I note that you may write to Ms
X yourself, and of course you may do so.”

4.3.6 Clir Price did not have the permission of the Monitoring Officer to write to Ms
X in the terms in which he did. The letter to Ms X was written in more extreme
terms than the e-mail to the Panel and the Monitoring Officer dated 10 March,
2015.

5. FINDINGS OF WHETHER MATERIAL FACTS DISCLOSE A FAILURE TO
COMPLY WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT

5.1 The Appellant’s Submissions

5.1.1 ClIr Price submitted that the Ombudsman'’s report stated that there was no
evidence of breach of paragraph 4(b) of the Code of Conduct. Clir Price conceded
that he may have caused the Panel members alarm and distress. He had already
written letters of apology but was waiting until the proceedings concluded before
sending them.

5.1.2 With regard to paragraph 6(1)(a) of the Code, Clir Price said that he very
much regretted the steps taken and he had never anticipated that his letter dated
20 March, 2015 would have been sent on. Neither Ms X not her solicitor had
contacted Clir Price since Ms X’s solicitor acknowledged receipt of the letter. He
said that he had done his best to rectify the situation, but he did not feel that he
had brought his office or the Council into disrepute through his actions.

5.2 The Ombudsman’s Submissions

5.2.1 Ms Shaw contended that in the light of the finding of fact at 4.3.4, there was
indeed a breach of paragraph 4(b) of the Code. Despite the contents of the
Ombudsman’s report, Ms Shaw acknowledged that the full code was engaged as
per the findings of the Standards Committee. The comment regarding pre-judging
of the matter caused offence and was disrespectful, and unfairly portrayed the
Grievance Appeal Panel proceedings and the objective approach of the Panel
members.

5.2.2 Ms Shaw also argued that as ClIr Price had agreed to go ahead with the
Grievance Appeal Panel hearing and had agreed to reject the five grievance
points, the false portrayal of events in the letter dated 20 March, 2015 brought the
office of councillor and the authority into disrepute.

Tudalen 19 7



(AT04 v02.09.10)

5.2.3 She said that Clir Price had acted in a premeditated way by writing about
the proceedings in a way which was contrary to what actually occurred. The
recipient of the letter would have taken it at face value.

5.3 Appeal Tribunal’s Decision

5.3.1 On the basis of the findings of fact, the Appeal Tribunal found by a
unanimous decision that there was a failure to comply with the Code of Conduct of
Powys County Council

5.3.2 Paragraph 4(b) of the Code of Conduct states that “you must show respect
and consideration for others”.

5.3.3 The Appeal Tribunal found that Clir Price breached Paragraph 4(b) of the
Code. In view of the finding of fact that Clir Price was acting in the role of elected
member when writing to Ms X, the Tribunal found that the Paragraph was engaged
and on an objective assessment found that Clir Price failed to show respect and
consideration for his Panel colleagues which undermined the whole process. It is
also the case that, by sending a misleading letter, he failed to show respect for the
recipient, who was signed off work due to stress. as-well-as-officers-of the-Couneil:

5.3.4 Paragraph 6(1)(a) of the Code of Conduct states that “you must not conduct
yourself in a manner which could reasonably be regarded as bringing your office or
authority into disrepute”.

5.3.5 The Appeal Tribunal found that Clir Price did breach Paragraph 6(1)(a) of
the code and the action of sending the letter dated 20 March 2015 to Ms X in the
terms in which he did, brought the office and authority into disrepute. Although Ms
X was a member of staff, she was also a member of the public. Such a letter could
have led to serious consequences for the authority as it unfairly and incorrectly
discredited a formal procedure affecting employment. It also called into question
other Grievance Appeal Panel hearings dealt with by the members of the Panel as
Clir Price said the had pre-judged the matter before them. Councillors should
correctly state what happened at hearings.

5.3.6 The Appeal Tribunal accordingly decided by unanimous decision to endorse
the determination of Powys County Council's Standards Committee that Clir Price
had breached the Code of Conduct of Powys County Council.

6. SUBMISSIONS ON ACTION TO BE TAKEN

6.1 The Appellant’s Submissions

6.1.1 Clir Price stated that he was extremely remorseful regarding the upset that
he had caused to the other panel members. He had drafted letters of apology but
he thought that he should not send them until the process was concluded. Clir

Price had not appreciated the opportunity offered on pages 3 and 14 of the appeal
form, APWO5 to call witnesses, including withesses (as to character) should the
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Tribunal find that there has been a breach of the provisions of the Code of
Conduct. He did not however wish to add anything further.

6.2 The Ombudsman’s Submissions

6.2.1 Ms Shaw referred to the aggravating and mitigating factors taken into
account by the Standards Committee and also to a previous breach of the Code
which had led to Clir Price being suspended for a month from his role as a Powys
County Councillor in 2013 which comprised of a breach of paragraphs 5 and
6(1)(a) of the then Code of Conduct. It was also an intentional breach as Clir Price
had taken the premeditated decision to write to Ms X and to misrepresent the
decision and deliberations of the Panel. She was also of the view that Clir Price
had sought to blame others and although there had been no serious repercussions
to the action taken on this occasion, there had been the potential for serious
consequences. Clir Price’s proposed apologies were noted and it would have been
helpful if this had been indicated earlier in the process as they may have had an’
impact on proceedings.

6.3 Appeal Tribunal’s Decision

6.3.1 The Appeal Tribunal considered all the facts of the case and in particular the
following aggravating and mitigating factors:-

Aggravating Factors

The Tribunal considered the breach to be a serious one:-

e Clir Price’s action discredited a vital and formal procedure affecting
employment.

 This was the second finding of a breach of the Code of Conduct against Clir
Price.

e The actions brought the office and authority into disrepute.

e The actions of ClIr Price were reckless as to breach of the Code.

e Until this hearing, ClIr Price had continued to deny key issues, for instance
to deny that the decision of 20 February, 2015 to proceed with the
Grievance Appeal Panel hearing was unanimous.

e ClIr Price had sought to blame others for some elements of events.

Mitigating Factors

It was accepted by the Panel however that the Standards Committee had not had
the benefit of hearing the mitigating factors which the Panel had the opportunity to
hear during the course of the appeal:-

e Clir Price has made it very clear at this hearing that he very much regretted
the steps he had taken.
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e There was some recognition by Clir Price that his actions had caused upset
and the panel noted the laudable intention to send a written apology to Clirs
Williams and Roberts-Jones.

e ClIr Price has co-operated with the investigation and with this Panel's
proceedings.

Article 10

Article 10 of the ECHR was considered by the Tribunal both at the breach and
sanction stages of the proceedings. It noted that the President, when dealing with
the issue of permission to appeal, had refused permission to appeal on the basis

that the letter to Ms X did not consist of political expression and did not therefore
attract enhanced protection.

Article 10 of the ECHR provides:

(1) Everyone has the right to freedom of expression. This right shall include
freedom to hold opinions and to receive and impart information and ideas
without interference by public authority regardless of frontiers...

(2) The exercise of these freedoms, since it carries with it duties and
responsibilities, may be subject to such formalities, conditions, restrictions or
penalties as are prescribed by law and are necessary in a democratic society,
in the interests of...the protection of the reputation or rights of others,...”

The provisions of the Code of Conduct are prescribed by law and the question of
whether the provisions are “necessary in a democratic society for the protection of
the rights of others” calls for the following questions to be asked:-

(a) Was the legislative objective behind these provisions sufficiently important
to justify limiting freedom of speech?

(b) Were the measures adopted rationally connected to the legislative
objective? and

(c) Were the means used to impair the right or freedom of speech no more than
is necessary to accomplish the legislative objective?

The purpose of the relevant legislation is to encourage and impose certain
minimum standards of behaviour in respect of the conduct of Councillors in local
government. Clir Price has not challenged the necessity of the provisions of the
Code of Conduct and it is implicit that he therefore accepts the operation of the
ethical framework which, in principle satisfies the three conditions for a lawful
interference with free speech in a democratic society.

The Tribunal concluded that the key sections of Clir Price’s letter to Ms X dated
20" March, 2017 amounted to no more that an incorrect and unfair expression of
personal frustration and regret regarding the proceedings.

The Panel also concluded that even if the key observations in the letter dated 20"
March, 2017 had amounted to political expression and a higher level of protection
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applied, in view of the clear finding that these observations were incorrect and
unfair, the interference would nevertheless be lawful and justified pursuant to
Article 10(2).

Decision
6.3.2 The Appeal Tribunal accordingly decided by unanimous decision to refer the
matter back to the Standards Committee with a recommendation that Clir Price

should be suspended for a period of 3 months.

6.3.3 That Powys County,C‘\)unciI and its Standards Committee are notified
accordingly. ‘

\ . X
Signed............. é/\\ e ——— Date...| .. Maw i, 20 I+

Claire Jones u
Chairperson of the Appeal T

ibunal

Claire Sharp
Panel Member

Sian Jones
Panel Member
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Status: This is the original version (as it was originally made). This
itent of legisiation is currently only available in its original formar.

WELSH STATUTORY INSTRUMENTS

2001 No. 2281

Local Government Investigations (Functions of Monitoring
Officers and Standards Committees)(Wales) Regulations 2001

Determinations of the Standards Committee

9—1) After considering any representations, a Standards Committee must determine:

(a) that there is no evidence of any failure to comply with the code of conduct of the relevant
authority and that therefore no action needs to be taken in respect of the matters which are
the subject of the investigation;

(b) that a member or co-opted member (or former member or co-opted member) of a relevant
authority has failed to comply with the relevant authority’s code of conduct but that no
action needs to be taken in respect of that failure;

(¢) thatamember or co-opted member (or former member or co-opted member) of the relevant
authority has failed to comply with the authority’s code of conduct and should be censured,
or

(d) that a member or co-opted member of a relevant authority has failed to comply with the
authority’s code of conduct and should be suspended or partially suspended from being a
member or co-opted member of that authority for a period not exceeding six months.

(2) Where an appeals tribunal drawn from the Adjudication Panel for Wales makes a
recommendation in accordance with Regulation 12 {(a)(ii} below that a different penalty should be
imposed, the Standards Committee must also determine whether or not it should uphold its original
determination or accept the recommendation.

(3} After making a determination in accordance with paragraph (1) or (2) above the Standards
Committee must notify any person who is the subject of the investigation, any person who made any
allegation which gave rise to the investigation and the Local Commissioner in Wales accordingly,
giving reasons for the decision.

(4) After making a determination in accordance with paragraph (2) above the Standards
Committee must also notify the president of the Adjudication Panel for Wales.
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APPENDIX F

Extract from Powys County Council Constitution April 2016

REFERRAL BY AN APPEALS TRIBUNAL

18.4.14.1

18.4.14.2

18.4.14.3

Where the Standards Committee determines that the Member has failed
to comply with the Code of Conduct, the Member may appeal against the
determination to an appeals tribunal drawn from the Adjudication Panel
for Wales.

An appeals tribunal may endorse the decision of the Standards
Committee, refer a matter back to it recommending it impose a different
penalty, or overturn the decision.

If:
(@) the Standards Committee determines that the Member failed to
comply with the Code of Conduct;
(b) the Member appeals to an appeals tribunal drawn from the
Adjudication Panel for Wales; and
(c) the said tribunal refers the matter back to the Standards Committee

with a recommendation that a different penalty be imposed,

the Standards Committee shall meet as soon as reasonably practicable
to consider the recommendation of the appeals tribunal and will
determine whether or not it should uphold its original determination or
accept the recommendation.

(d) After making its determination the Standards Committee will

instruct the Standards Officer to confirm the decision and the
reasons for the decision in writing and to send a copy of the written
decision to the Member, the Complainant, the Ombudsman and the
president of the Adjudication Panel for Wales as soon as
reasonably practicable.
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